James Alexander Hay Hector, 1868–1940 [Draft 16. 3. 20]
Hector was born on 24 September 1868 at 11, Holburn Place, Aberdeen, the son of William Hector, a cabinet carver and his wife Henrietta (née Hay). He was educated at Robert Gordon College and then became an assistant master at Gray's School of Art (est. 1885), both in Aberdeen, and as a young art teacher lived with his widowed mother in the Old Machar district. In the 1891 census he also described himself as a ‘portrait artist’: Aberdeen Art Gallery has two examples, of Sir Patrick Geddes and (later Professor) Jules Desseignet [as ‘Portrait of a French Man’], and Aberdeen University a more formal posthumous one dated 1906 of Professor Stewart D. F. Salmond (1838–1905), third Principal of the Aberdeen Free Church College. In September 1892 Hector was appointed drawing master at Gordon’s College but at some point in the mid-1890s went to study at the Académie Julian in Paris and also stayed for a while in an artists’ colony in Brittany. He returned to Aberdeen by about 1897 and set up a teaching studio at 26 Union Row in which he shared the space with the sculptor W.H. Buchan. The following year he began to teach at the Aberdeen School of Design (also in the Row), which appears primarily to have been an artisans’ college. This continued to 1906, overlapping from 1904/5 with his appointment as principal lecturer in art at the Aberdeen United Free Church Training College, Charlotte Street (retitled from 1905 reorganisation of local teacher-training as the Aberdeen Provincial Training  College, or Centre). There he had ‘wide influence in shaping the method of teaching art in schools throughout the north and in many parts of Scotland….As an artist he showed remarkable versatility in his work. He painted with equal facility and talent in oils and water colour, and he was as happy as a portrait painter as he was in landscape and seascape work’ (obituary, Aberdeen Press and Journal, 5 June 1940). Hector exhibited variously – mostly landscapes – at Glasgow, Liverpool, the RA (in 1916 and 1935) and especially the Royal Scottish Academy, showing 24 paintings there. 
Hector was also a keen Francophile, spoke good French and was an active early member of the Aberdeen Franco-Scottish Society, including serving for a long time its secretary. On 14 September 1917, during the First World War and when rising 49, he volunteered to join Royal Flying Corps ground staff in France, serving as a storeman (private, air mechanic 3rd class, no. 96050): this became RAF service with its official foundation from 1 April 1918. 
In 1906 at St Machar, Aberdeen, Hector married Maggie Jane Simpson Badenoch: his local obituary (as above) also calls her a ‘distinguished artist’, perhaps London trained since she reportedly studied pottery as a student at the Victoria and Albert Museum. They both painted Scottish landscapes and also travelled abroad to some extent. ‘The Book of St Fittick’ presented to St Fittick's Church, Aberdeen, in 1901 included some of Hector’s line drawings and he also designed a few stained-glass windows. One was a war memorial to former pupils of the Gordon Schools, Huntly, which was unveiled in 1921. He did another window at Nigg Church, Tain, and, in 1923, a three-panel memorial window to Robert Whyte Thomson, a local glove and hosiery manufacturer, at the new church of St Ninian, Aberdeen (details in the Aberdeen Press and Journal, 23 March 1923). About 1902–03, he also designed a religious mural above the chancel arch of St John the Evangelist, Aberdeen, probably because of friendship with a Mr Whyte, who ran the decorating firm that sponsored it  (and though credited to Hector, no payment to him is recorded). On retiring from his teaching post on 23 June 1933, Hector continued to work at his studio in Union Row and later one in Marischal Street, Aberdeen. His last Aberdeen residence was 41 Salisbury Terrace but he died, aged 71, on 4 June 1940 at Kepplestone Mansion, a local nursing home. His wife followed, aged 78, in March 1947: the single landscape oil by Hector in Aberdeen Art Gallery, of Alnack Water, was presented in that year by her executors.
The Hectors did not have children: Gertrude Mary Hector (1888 –1972), Aberdonian jewellery designer and author of several books on the Arts and Crafts movement, was daughter of the Revd John Hector, D.D., of Duff College, Calcutta, and his wife Margaret Pittendrigh. They married in Calcutta in 1876, where Gertrude was also born.

Summarised from Art UK discussion on Hector’s portrait of Professor Stewart Dingwall Fordyce Salmond (1838–1905) in the University of Aberdeen collection and from http://www.circlecity.co.uk/wartime/board/index.php?page=103 there cited.
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